
                           WYCKOFF PLANNING BOARD 
JULY 11, 2007 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
Regular Meeting: July 11, 2007 - 7:30 p.m. 
Location:  Court Room 

      Second floor, Memorial Town Hall 
 
Board Member Attendance: Gordon Stanley, Chairman; Robert Steinbruch, Vice 
Chairman; David Connolly, Mayor; Randy Hoogerheyde; Fred Depken; Kathy Scarpelli; 
Dan Hartigan; Robert Kane, Alt. Absent: Joseph Fiorenzo, Twp. Comm. Rep.; Gerry 
Chi. 
 
Staff Attendance:  Peter Ten Kate, Boswell Engineering Representative; Joseph 
Perconti, Board Attorney; Susan Schilstra, Administrative Officer/Secretary.   

 
The following statement, in accordance with the Open Public Meeting Act, 
was made by the Chairman, Gordon Stanley, “The regular July 11, 2007 
Meeting of the Wyckoff Planning Board is now in session.  In accordance 
with the Open Public Meetings Act, notice of this meeting  appears on our 
Annual Schedule of Meetings. A copy of said Annual Schedule has been 
posted on the bulletin board in Memorial Town Hall; a copy has been filed 
with the Township Clerk, The Record, The Ridgewood News and the 
North Jersey Herald and News - all newspapers having general circulation 
throughout the Township of Wyckoff.  At least 48 hours prior to this 
meeting the Agenda thereof was similarly posted, filed and mailed to said 
newspapers." 
 

Approval of the June 13, 2007 Work Session Minutes 
Approval of the June 13, 2007 Regular Business Minutes 
 
The Board recommended that a change be made to the June 13, 2007 minutes.  
Where it is stated in the narrative for Barrister at Deep Brook that the Court ordered “99 
condos” for this site, it should be changed to “99 units”.  Board Secretary Schilstra will 
make this change to the minutes. 
 

1  RESOLUTION TO APPROVE VOUCHERS FOR PAYMENT 
 

 RESOLUTION #07-07 
 

Board Member Hartigan made a motion to memorialize this resolution to approve 
vouchers for payment. Second, Board Member Scarpelli. Voting in favor:  Mr. Kane, Ms. 
Scarpelli, Mr. Hartigan, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mr. Steinbruch, Mayor Connolly, 
and Chairman Stanley. 
 
 
 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

2 

2 FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
2B  WILLOW POND SECTION VIII-E; BLK 421 LOT 3.12 – Final approval for Lots 78, 80, 

83, 84 & 85.   (Scarpelli) 
 
 Chairman Stanley recused himself from discussion and removed himself from the dais.  
 

David Becker, attorney for the applicant, and Mr. Ed Galenkamp, the applicant, were 
present.   Mr. Becker stated that the applicant is requesting final approval on the five (5) 
remaining lots of the preliminary subdivision approval of June 2000. 
 
Boswell Engineering Representative Ten Kate said that two (2) variances had been 
previously approved.  There has been no change since the final plat of the preliminary 
approval of 2000. 
 
Board Member Scarpelli said a 3’ road widening easement is indicated in front of Lot 78 
and Lot 80 along Sicomac Avenue that has been previously recorded.  She asked the 
applicant to provide testimony regarding this issue. 
 
Mr. Becker said the filed map #8540 indicates this road widening easement which was 
filed December 28, 1987 and the preliminary plat of 2000 has also been filed as well. 
 
Board Member Scarpelli made a motion to approve Willow Pond Section VIII-E as 
presented.  Second, Board Member Hartigan.  Voting in favor: Mr. Kane, Ms. Scarpelli, 
Mr. Hartigan, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mayor Connolly, and Vice Chairman 
Steinbruch. 
 
Chairman Stanley returned to the dais. 

 

3  PUBLIC HEARING(S) SCHEDULED FOR THE 7:30 P.M. BUSINESS MEETING 
 
3A  BARRISTER HOME CONSTRUCTION, INC. (BARRISTER AT DEEP BROOK) BLK 

497 LOTS 7, 8.01, 10 & 11.01 (RA-25); Ravine Avenue.  Preliminary Major Subdivision/ 
variances.      
 
The site presently contains four (4) lots.  One lot, which contains an existing residential 
dwelling, fronts on Grandview Avenue. The largest of the three lots, known as the 
Mason family property, was previously zoned by Court Order for Affordable 
Housing/Multi-family for 99 units. The application proposes to subdivide the remaining 
three (3) lots into nine (9) conforming lots and to construct a new single family 
residence on these lots. A total of six (6) new homes are proposed by the application. 

 
Mr. Robert Milanese, the principal of Barrister Home Construction and applicant, Mr. 
Russell Huntington, the applicant’s attorney, and Mr. Andrew Missey, the applicant’s 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

3 

engineer, were present.   
 
Mr. Stuart Lieberman, the attorney representing the Friends of Wyckoff, recalled Mr. 
Zimmerman, the objector’s planner. 
 
Board Attorney Perconti reminded Mr. Zimmerman that he is still under oath. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman explained that in his letter and report he included the decision of Green 
Meadows at Montville v. Planning Board; references and quotes to the findings in this 
decision from the Cox treatise Zoning and Land Use Administration, 2006 edition; and 
he calculated the amount of steep slopes disturbance in the cul-de-sac street.  He also 
redrafted a second alternative subdivision roadway and indicated what the steep slope 
disturbance would be on that roadway verses the roadway he presented at the previous 
meeting verses the applicant’s roadway addressing concerns of the Planning Board. 
 
Mr. Lieberman asked Mr. Zimmerman to describe the second alternative roadway and 
what it demonstrates. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said the second alternative roadway dated 6/28/2007 has a shorter cul-
de-sac street with a 50’ right of way that intersects Grandview Avenue where the 
applicant’s roadway intersects Grandview Avenue.  However, it does proceed along a 
route which has a marginal interference with the existing steep slopes on the property.  
The final result is that the second alternative plan disturbs 938 SF (square feet) on 
steep slopes or about 4% of the alternative right of way in contrast to the roadway 
presented by the applicant which disturbs 8,157 SF or 20% of the right of way.  He 
stated that in his opinion this is a significant difference in the steep slope disturbance of 
the applicant’s plan. 
  
Mr. Lieberman asked if his road better implements the steep slope ordinance. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said it does because it marginally impacts the steep slopes and 
amount of steep slopes disturbed is significantly less than what is proposed.  He stated  
that the Wyckoff Master Plan calls for the preservation of scenic vistas, open space, 
historic sites, and the ravine, which is mentioned in the Wyckoff Master Plan as an 
environmental feature in the community, which should be preserved as open space.   
His planning recommendation to the municipality is that this property be acquired for the 
benefit of the entire community as open space. His second recommendation is the 
potential to utilize the existing houses on the property and include one additional house 
fronting on Red Rock Road which would require fewer disturbances of steep slopes.  
He stated this would generate approximately five (5) homes without any steep slope 
variances.  The third planning recommendation would be the second alternative 
roadway which was submitted to the Planning Board. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked Mr. Zimmerman if he has all of his plans and calculations with 
him this evening. 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

4 

 
Mr. Zimmerman said no. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked if he brought the calculations he referred to at last month’s 
meeting along with him tonight. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said no.   
 
Mr. Huntington said Mr. Zimmerman’s testimony tonight is of other plans and exhibits 
and again there are no calculations.  
 
Mr. Zimmerman said the plans he has referred to are included in his June 28, 2007 
report. 
 
Mr. Huntington said he was talking about the plans he referred to at the last meeting 
that he didn’t bring with him this month either. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said last month’s plan had been distributed to the Board and he had 
been cross-examined on it.  He didn’t see why he would need the calculations this 
evening when a new alternative plan had been submitted. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked if this is the document that Mr. Zimmerman has made his 
recommendations as to the diminished disturbance. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said this is the document that he submitted for alternative roadways. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked if he consulted anyone in making these calculations.  He added 
that Mr. Zimmerman gave the Board his conclusion as to the alternative road but asked 
where the calculations are so he could review the methodology of the calculations. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said he did not have the calculations with him this evening.  They are in 
his office. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that tonight the Board has Mr. Zimmerman’s net opinion as to an 
alternate roadway. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said there is a marginal area of steep slope that is readily visible from 
the roadway which is on the plan. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked what the scale of the drawing is. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said 1” equals 80’. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that since the drawing is a copy of the applicant’s site plan the 
scale could be off.  He added that the roadway is not to scale.  It was hand drawn and 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

5 

appears to be off.  You have offered the Board an alternative drawing configuration, not 
withstanding that you are a planner and not an engineer, drawn to accurate scale and 
now you say it may not be accurate. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said it is an accurately scaled drawing and the right of way is 50’ and 
there may be some areas where the right of way is 52’ or 48’ but that is within the width 
of the line. 
 
Chairman Stanley said that it is quite obvious to the Board Members that the road is 
drawn by hand and not by an architect or an engineer so I would agree that it is not 
drawn to scale. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman objected and said it is drawn to scale.   
 
Board Member Hartigan said the roadway is hand drawn and the calculations are in 
your office.  Are the disturbance calculations based on something that is more precise 
than this drawing. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said the fact that certain portions of the road may be slightly less than 
50’ in my opinion will not impact upon my calculation as to the path of the roadway 
traversing through steep slope areas.   Some of the roadway that is 48’ is outside the 
steep slope areas. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked if any elevations had been set for this roadway sketch.  Do you 
have any way of knowing it complies with RSIS in respect to vertical alignment. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said he did not set any elevation.  He said his roadway complies more 
with the vertical alignment that the applicant’s roadway.   
 
Mr. Huntington said but you didn’t set any grades and you’re not an engineer. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said that is correct.  He is a planner doing the best he can as a 
planner. 
 
Mr. Huntington said Mr. Zimmerman has no way of testifying today with any degree of 
certainty whatsoever that complies with the vertical alignment standards for the RSIS. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said that is incorrect.  He testified that in his opinion he did review the 
topography and the road profiles that the applicant submitted in his plans and he made 
a guess-timate and a conclusion that I think your roadway has more vertical 
differentiation than the roadway I depicted because my roadway does not go through 
steep slope areas. 
Mr. Huntington said it is not safe to conclude anything from this drawing and I could 
move to strike this testimony.  Mr. Zimmerman is not qualified to provide testimony on 
the vertical alignment or the engineering design particularly when the drawing is not 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

6 

accurately drawn to scale. 
 
Marked as identification at this time was the following exhibit: 
C-5 Report dated June 28, 2007 
 
Mr. Lieberman said that the testimony is on the last page of Mr. Zimmerman’s report 
dated June 28, 2007 which is the second alternative roadway plan. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked Mr. Zimmerman if he made any calculations as to the grading of 
the lots adjacent to your road. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said he did not concern himself with the lots just the steep slope 
variances with regard to the roadway. 
 
Mr. Huntington said the alternate roadway may disturb more of the land within the 
individual lots. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said he did not make any disturbance calculations.  He cannot answer 
this question tonight. 
 
Mr. Huntington said the alternate roadway designed by Mr. Zimmerman winds its way 
through the steep slopes.  Part of the roadway is closer to the ravine. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said in two areas it is 60’ closer to the ravine than the applicant’s 
proposed road.   
 
Mr. Huntington said by minimizing the disturbance of the ravine is beneficial.   
 
Mr. Zimmerman said minimizing development adjacent to the ravine is highly beneficial.   
 
Mr. Huntington said that three proposed houses on proposed Lot 10, 11.01 and 11.02 
are located practically in Mr. Zimmerman’s road layout.  They would need to be placed 
further towards the ravine. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said these three houses are still further from the ravine than the 
houses on proposed Lot 8.01 and 8.02.  The lots are over 1.2 acres in size and moving 
them back 60’ is not substantial.   
 
Vice Chairman Steinbruch said that Mr. Zimmerman indicated that 1” equals 80’.  When 
I look at your plan in one area it looks more like the road is moved 100’ towards the 
ravine.   
Upon measuring the roadway with an engineer scale, Mr. Zimmerman said the road 
would be relocated approximately 80’ closer to the ravine and not 60’ as previously 
stated.   
 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

7 

Vice Chairman Steinbruch said do you feel that it’s beneficial to move the roadway 
closer to the ravine in order to avoid steep slope variances. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said the dwellings would then be equally away from the steep slopes 
and the ravine. 
 
Vice Chairman Steinbruch said the applicant on Lot 10 had moved the proposed new 
dwelling significantly further away or 120’ further away from the ravine and then would 
demolish the existing house and pool.  
 
Mr. Zimmerman said he did not have a problem with either the existing house or the 
proposed house.    On Lot 8.01 and 8.02 these homes will infringe more on the steep 
slopes with their present locations.   
 
Mayor Connolly said that in reviewing the road I believe testimony presented said that 
no variances will be required for the houses the way they are planned. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that is correct. 
 
Mayor Connolly said that Lot 11.05 the driveway comes up into a steep slope area.  Will 
the steep slope be graded in order to accommodate a driveway. 
 
Mr. Huntington said the applicant is permitted to disturb some amount of steep slope by 
law.  This would not require a variance.    
 
Mayor Connolly said that by looking at Mr. Zimmerman’s proposed road steep slope 
adjustments will have to be made on proposed Lot 10 and Lot 11.01 because the 
houses will need to move further towards the ravine.  He added that for the past few 
months he has spent several hours walking the property.  I would rather address one 
steep slope variances proposed by the applicant in the roadway than locate 2 houses 
closer to the ravine. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said the applicant can apply for a variance free application on the lots 
but before the Board is the variance for the steep slopes in the road.  The applicant has 
to prove that his greater disturbance is better planning and zoning alternative than my 
road which has significantly fewer disturbances and that is the criteria for a C-2 
variance. 
 
Mr. Huntington said the only thing that you know for sure is that your road bed disturbs 
the steep slopes.  You don’t know how much resulting steep slope disturbance there 
would be from construction of your proposed road or what additional square footage 
would be disturbed. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said he is prepared to explain why his road will have less steep slope 
than the applicant’s roadway. 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

8 

 
Chairman Stanley asked for a more or less answer from Mr. Zimmerman. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said he is prepared to go through this lot by lot and show the Board 
exactly where the disturbance would be and the disturbance would not be resulting from 
my road verses the applicant’s road. 
 
Mayor Connolly said he would like Mr. Zimmerman to do this but only if he has all the 
information with him so it could be submitted for the township to review.  If you don’t 
have all the information with you then I don’t think we will have a theory of what you 
have. 
 
Mr. Lieberman said Mr. Zimmerman is not relying on a theory but on professional 
planning observations and I think he should provide his testimony. 
 
Board Attorney Perconti said the question was whether he has the specific calculations 
for the disturbance not only in the roadway but in the lot area. If he can’t provide this 
information then he should not continue with his testimony.  He should not opine, or 
guess, or assume until he can produce the calculations. 
 
Board Member Hartigan said he specifically remembered the request being made at 
last month’s meeting to provide the Board with the calculations that he performed on 
the original road bed that was being offered as an alternate.  We determined this 
evening that those calculations do not exist.   
 
Mr. Huntington said it is one thing to simply free draw a road on a piece of undulating 
property and then calculate how much area you disturbed in the road bed.  It’s another 
thing entirely to understand how a road at that location would impact the development 
on the site.  The grading of the road has to be compatible with the lots next to it. That is 
why I would want to know if the other calculations exist. 
 
Mr. Zimmerman said the focus of the variance is a specific piece of property which is 
the roadway.  The focus of the variance is not the impact of the roadway on other 
portions of the property.  The case law that was presented before the Board spells this 
out.  Does the roadway satisfy a C-1 or C-2 criteria. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that planners should just give planning testimony and not legal 
advice. 
 
Mr. Lieberman said planners engage in legal analysis all of the time.  They are required 
to understand the laws that applies to their field and testify as it applies to the Municipal 
Land Use Law (MLUL) and cases that interpret this and his understanding of this. 
 
Chairman Stanley said that he provided the case law which was part of his exhibit and 
the Board has read through the case law so if the Board has a question about the case 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

9 

the Board will ask the Board Attorney. 
 
Mr. Lieberman said that the Board should not ignore Mr. Zimmerman’s testimony 
because he is charged with understanding the case law in the performance of his 
responsibilities as a planner just as your planner needs to understand the law that 
applies to his planning. 
 
Board Attorney Perconti said the Board can consider Mr. Zimmerman’s testimony in 
view of the interpretation that was given by Mr. Lieberman.  Mr. Zimmerman was kind 
enough to provide the Board with the case law.   
 
Mr. Keith Merl, Senior Project Manager from Princeton Hydro, was the next witness.  He 
was reminded that he had been previously sworn.   
 
Marked as identification at this time was the following exhibit: 
C-6 Revised BMP Calculations 
 
Chairman Stanley stated that the Board is receiving this information this evening Mr. 
Zimmerman’s exhibit had been given to the Board ten business days before the 
meeting.  He said there was a letter written by Mr. Lieberman cautioning the Board 
about any new information given out less than ten days before the meeting. 
 
Mr. Huntington said his recollection is that any new reports have to be filed within the 
ten day period.   
 
Mr. Lieberman said this is not a representation of the law. 
 
Vice Chairman Steinbruch said information cannot be received at the meeting and 
expect the Board to read the information and listen to Mr. Merl give testimony.  
 
Mr. Lieberman said the law requires an applicant to submit any information ten days 
before the meeting.  There is no requirement that objectors do this and we have every 
right to do this. 
 
Vice Chairman Steinbruch said that the objectors want to be taken seriously and the 
Board wants to examine all the information seriously.  It will be very difficult to listen to 
the testimony tonight and try to read through the information while Mr. Merl is talking to 
us.  We really do value your witnesses.  I’m disappointed that Mr. Zimmerman did not 
come with his calculations that were requested at the last month’s meeting.   
 
Mr. Huntington said that he recollected that Mr. Merl’s testimony had concluded at the 
last meeting.  New information is being received this evening. 
 
Chairman Stanley said that the new information will need to be reviewed by the 
engineer and Mr. Merl will need to testify again next month. 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

10 

 
Mr. Lieberman said his testimony is critical.  He said he was the last witness at the last 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Huntington said the drainage calculation document that has been presented tonight 
by Mr. Merl has not been signed or sealed by a professional engineer. 
 
Mr. Lieberman said Mr. Merl is willing to sign and seal the document tonight. 
 
Boswell Engineering Representative Ten Kate said that he will review the document 
after the hearing.  The Board can listen to the testimony. 
 
Board Attorney Perconti said that Mr. Huntington’s witnesses have not concluded.  The 
Board needs to discuss whether they should consider Mr. Merl’s testimony. 
 
Chairman Stanley said the Board can review the document this month and have Mr. 
Merl return next month. 
 
Mr. Merl said that his intent of the document was to have supporting calculations for his 
presentation.  I would like to have the opportunity to put some narrative to the 
document. 
 
Chairman Stanley said so much information is being presented to the Board from every 
side that the Board and Consulting Engineer will need in the future an opportunity to 
review any documentation before the meeting.  
 
Mr. Lieberman said he appreciates what the Board is saying.  
 
The Board asked that Mr. Merl to submit a new report within ten days of the next 
meeting and then it can be discussed next month. 
 
Board Attorney Perconti said that he agrees with the Board on this decision.  He added 
that the Board did end the meeting last month because of the lateness of the evening.  
Mr. Huntington was due to cross examine Mr. Merl at this meeting. 
 
Mr. Lieberman recommended that Mr. Merl give a narrative of his report tonight and 
then he will return at the next month’s meeting. 
The Board agreed to listen to the narrative by Mr. Merl. 
 
Mr. Merl said the document that has been given to the Board this evening is a 
spreadsheet used to design the infiltration for groundwater recharge analysis in order to 
comply with the State Stormwater Regulations.  He prepared this document in order to 
compare it to the applicant’s calculations.  The applicant’s report is the drainage 
calculations report revised April 24, 2007 signed by Alexander Lapatka.  The applicant 
calculated the post-development annual recharge deficit at 133,669 cubic feet or the 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

11 

amount of water that is not going to be infiltrated because of the development.  The 
deficit is then managed through BMP (best management practice).  The applicant 
calculated the deficit by grouping the BMP’s together.  He said that the correct way of 
accomplishing this is that each small BMP needs to be calculated separately.   
 
Mr. Lieberman said that the applicant took the amount of water being collected and they 
added it up and equaled the deficit of 133,669 cubic feet.   And your opinion is that they 
are not correct. 
 
Mr. Merl said that he calculated the applicant’s deficit at 30% and they should be 
achieving 100%.  It does not comply with the New Jersey runoff requirements.   
 
Marked as identification at this time was the following exhibit: 
C-7 Applicants revised site plan colored by Mr. Merl 
 
Mr. Merl said that if the roofs are being recharged (indicated in green in Exhibit C-7) 
and the impervious areas (indicated in red in Exhibit C-7) such as the roadway, 
sidewalks, deck, porches and driveways are not being recharged.  The visual sense 
shows that the applicant is only providing roofs as infiltration in the calculation.  In order 
to satisfy the storm water regulations the volume of impervious area must equal the 
volume of roofs for infiltration.  Each individual infiltration system will need to be 
retreated because all runoff is being sent to them.  He added that an above or below 
ground water detention basin detains water and water infiltration is not being provided.   
 
Mr. Merl continued that 1,000 gallon underground units are being proposed for the 
houses to infiltrate stormwater.  These are classified injection wells and are regulated 
by the State.  If the State presents a request for information on the wells the 
homeowner will have to provide this information.  These wells are provided on Lot 10, 
Lot 11.01, Lot 11.02, and Lot 11.06.  He recommended that this particular unit be 
resized and reduced in depth.  He continued that the applicant is proposing a storm 
filter unit in the detention basins and they will need to be maintained. 80% of the TSS 
(total suspended solids) will need to be removed.  The cartridges will need to be 
replaced twice a year.  This will be a costly investment to the homeowners. 
 
Chairman Stanley asked if these systems are approved by the State. 
 
Mr. Merl said these systems are approved by the State.  These systems should be 
insured for long term maintenance.  If the homeowners association cannot afford to 
maintain the cartridges the township would then be required to assist with the cost.  He 
said that is because the Township of Wyckoff was given a permit by the State under the 
new Phase II regulations.  If the homeowners don’t maintain the system ultimately it is 
the town’s responsibility.  It is the Planning Board’s choice to approve or not approve it. 

 
A FIVE MINUTE RECESS WAS TAKEN AT THIS TIME 

 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

12 

Mr. Huntington said that he will wait until the next meeting to see the report by Mr. Merl 
and have the applicant’s engineer review it.  He asked Mr. Merl to properly seal and 
certify his report according to engineering rules.  He asked Mr. Merl what date the 
document and the map was prepared. 
 
Mr. Merl answered that these documents were prepared today. 
 
Mr. Lieberman said there is no legal obligation for an engineer’s seal for submission to 
the Planning Board. 
 
Chairman Stanley said if he is making representation that the Board would like to know 
that the calculations are accurate.   
 
Mr. Merl said he did not have a problem with sealing his calculations. 
 
Chairman Stanley said that all information is needed ten (10) business days before the 
next Planning Board meeting which is August 8, 2007.  Mr. Huntington will cross 
examine Mr. Merl at the meeting in August. 
 
Mr. Lieberman called his next witness. 
 
Mr. Brian Scanlan, 51 Ravine Avenue, was sworn.  He said that he is an officer in Save 
the Ravine Alliance.  He said that he is not an adjoining homeowner but lives ½ mile 
from the proposed project.  On December 5, 2006 a petition with 1,028 signatures was 
presented to the Wyckoff Township Committee asking that the variances for this 
subdivision be denied and that the Deep Voll Brook ravine be preserved as open 
space. Deep Voll Brook ravine is a unique, historical environmental with aesthetic 
values and the land should be sold for open space. The Wyckoff Planning Board needs 
to decide whether to enforce the town’s ordinances.  The ravine should be fully 
protected. 
 
Marked as identification at this time was the following exhibit: 
C-8 Bergen County Board of Chosen Freeholders Resolution which supports 

preservation of the ravine 
C-9 Seven (7) letters from organizations supporting the ravine as Open Space 
C-10 Lenape Ravine Preserve 
 
Mr. Scanlan continued that all of the organizations in Exhibit C-9 are calling for the 
preservation of the ravine. If the developer can find no other way to realize a return on 
his money he should consider selling the land for open space. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that he would like to note his objection that the preservation of this 
tract of land is not the task before the Planning Board.   The confines of this proceeding 
under the MLUL (Municipal Land Use Law) that the opinions, petitions or letters 
concerning the ravine are irrelevant and should not be part of the Board’s 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

13 

consideration. 
 
Mr. Lieberman said that this organization, Save the Ravine, has become a prominent 
organization in the town with regard to the ravine.  The information that is being 
presented regarding alternative uses is relevant because variances are required.  And 
in considering a variance especially where a no variance potential exists the board 
should understand what the other uses are. 
 
Chairman Stanley said that the property before the Planning Board is zoned RA-25 and 
that is what the Board needs to focus on. 
 
Board Attorney Perconti said that with regard to the admissibility of the letters Seibert v. 
Dover Township cautions the Board that subject to not having the writers of the 
documents present, and subject to cross examination, it would be inappropriate for the 
Board to consider them as evidence.  They are free to appear and be cross-examined 
but the Board is not to consider the letters as evidence.  He asked that C-9 not be 
distributed. 
 
Mr. Lieberman said that the Board should consider these letters since this property is a 
cultural resource in the township.  He then withdrew the documents and asked Mr. 
Scanlan if he has received any indication of support by any environmental organizations 
made to you directly. 
 
Mr. Scanlan said yes that he did receive letters from several organizations which he 
had read into the record earlier. He then explained Exhibit C-10, the Lenape Ravine 
Preserve, to the Board.  It consists of walking trails with no interference of the steep 
slopes.  The old stone house will remain as an educational center with 3 lookout points.  
The Wyckoff Master Plan calls for pocket parks throughout the township.  The goal of 
the Master Plan is to preserve the historic and scenic sights and maintain the quality of 
the environment.  The proposed conservation easement does not ensure that the 
ravine is protected.  Lot 8.01 and Lot 8.02 would affect Deep Voll Brook ravine.  These 
structures would rob the public of the view of the ravine from Grandview Avenue.   
 
Marked as identification at this time was the following exhibit: 
C-11 2 photos of homes visible from the sidewalk on Ravine Avenue by Lafayette 

Avenue looking towards houses at Barrister Farms 
 
Mr. Scanlan said these 2 homes on Bridle Path (#606 and #608) depict that homes 
needed variances for the retaining walls and there is discharge of storm water directly 
into the ravine as seen by a pipe coming out of the retaining wall.  There may be other 
homes directly down the ravine that may have similar issues with regard to 
homeowners wanting a backyard and constructing these retaining walls.  In a letter from 
Scott Fisher, DPW Manager, stated in a 12/6/06 letter to the Planning Board, “Lots 8.01 
and 8.02 appear extremely close to the ravine. My concern is that future homeowners 
who may desire to install pools, additions, sheds and retaining walls would need to 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

14 

encroach that much closer to the ravine.”  The Planning Board should ensure the 
development is consistent with the Master Plan and to ensure future owners of these 
lots will not require additional variances to utilize their property.  Lot 8.01 and Lot 8.02 
should be removed from the subdivision.  Waivers should not be granted for detailed 
drawings of the proposed dwellings and the intended location of each dwelling to be 
constructed following any subdivision approval by the Board.  By granting the developer 
a waiver to postpone judgment of the actual impact of the development until the 
individual plot plans are presented, the Planning Board is ignoring the basic question of 
whether the property is fundamentally suitable for development.  As far as steep slopes, 
the calculation of the disturbed area is based on individual lot not on the entire tract as 
a whole including common areas.  Mr. Scanlan performed his own calculations on the 
property and concluded that over 200% in each category is being disturbed. The 
applicant’s planner said that only 20% would be disturbed.   
 
Mr. Huntington said that he has no questions. 
 
Vice Chairman Steinbruch asked who was interested in buying the property. 
 
Mr. Scanlan said the name of the organization is the trust for public land, a national 
organization, with an office in Morristown.  The representative who was interested in 
purchasing the property is Richard Haymeyer.  He said that the value of the property 
would change if fewer houses are approved for the property.  He said he called Mr. 
Haymeyer this morning and he was not interested in purchasing the property.  He said 
that last year he met with officials from the Bergen County Open Space Office and they 
said if the township was in favor of the preservation of the ravine that they were very 
interested because they do have the funds, along with the municipal funds that 50% 
would come from Green Acres, 25% from the county and 25% would be supplied by the 
town.  The trust for public land would also add some money approximately $300,000. to 
$500,000.   
 
Mr. Huntington said that he finds this line of questioning inappropriate.  The applicant is 
trying to develop the property that he owns with nine house which require no variances 
expect one variance for the roadway.  What is being discussed by Mr. Scanlan is the 
notion that he would like to see happen is for Mr. Milanese’s application to be denied so 
that the property can be devalued and purchased. 
 
Mr. Lieberman said his client did not say that. 
 
Chairman Stanley said he did say it.  When the application was approved or denied 
then the organizations would get involved. 
 
Mr. Lieberman said the board asked Mr. Scanlan is he had offered to purchase the 
land.  And he said the price could be dependent on how many units are approved by 
this Board. 
 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

15 

Mr. Scanlan said that the point is that if you approve nine homes than the price would 
be higher and if five homes are approved the price will be lower.  We do not have the 
power to affect a purchase.  The Township Committee would need to support a 
purchase.  
 
Mr. Lieberman then called his next witness. 
 
Janet Pollak, Professor of Anthropology at William Paterson University, was sworn.  
She said that she has an MA and PhD in the field of anthropology where archaeologists 
are trained. She worked in cultural resource management in 1974 at Rutgers University. 
 
Mr. Lieberman asked the Board to accept this witness as an expert archaeologist or an 
expert in historic preservation. 
 
Ms. Pollak said she works in cultural resource management and historic preservation 
generally involves more training in historic resources themselves.  I am a pre-historian. 
 
The Board accepted Ms. Pollak’s credentials as an expert in cultural resources. 
 
Marked as identification at this time was the following exhibit: 
C-12 A letter written to the Historic Preservation Office at NJDEP 
 
Mr. Lieberman asked Ms. Pollak what she reviewed prior to this meeting. 
 
Ms. Pollak said that she reviewed the initial Phase IB/II Cultural Resource Consulting 
Group (CRCG) investigation dated April 30, 2007 performed for the proposed 
development known as Barrister at Deep Brook and written by Matthew Tomaso.  The 
firm has revised the plan they had previously submitted to the Board.  During the recess 
I quickly reviewed these changes and it appears Mr. Tomaso’s firm has addressed my 
concerns.  The consulting group inspected the property to ascertain if there were any 
historic or prehistoric cultural resources that could be included in the national register of 
historic places.  CRCG concluded that there were none on this site.  They excavated up 
to 261 test pits. One “flake” or piece of stone for sharpening items was found. The 
Cairns-Whitten-Blauvelt House which is on the National Historic Registry faces the 
ravine.  The development on Lots 8.01 and 8.02 will drastically alter the vista/landscape 
from the Blauvelt house with the construction of modern homes and the removal of 
numerous trees.   
 
Mr. Lieberman asked if the ravine does represent a regional cultural resource. 
 
Ms. Pollak said technically it can’t be classified as a cultural resource according to the 
national register standards but it is a significant national topographical feature that has 
cultural importance for the residents in the area and Bergen County. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that you testified that your field of expertise is the preservation of 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

16 

man-made structures and artifacts. Your comments about the ravine as a natural 
resource are outside your scope of work. The Blauvelt House is on the historic register 
for its interior design and its exterior structural appearance.  The Blauvelt House is not 
on the historic register for its setting.  
 
Chairman Stanley asked Ms. Pollak to explain the vista and the distance something 
would need to be from the Blauvelt House. 
 
Ms. Pollak said the ravine is within 1000’ from a register historic structure. 
 
Chairman Stanley said there are houses to the north and east of this historic structure 
that are closer than 1000’. 
 
Ms. Pollak said the ravine has become significant in local history as a cultural resource.  
It is present on historic maps and documents.  The proposed project is likely to change 
the character of this landmark. 
 
Mr. Lieberman called his next witness. 
 
Barbara O’Brien, 336 Abby Court, Ridgewood, NJ was sworn.  She stated that she is 
President of the League of Women Voters of Ridgewood. 
 
Marked as identification at this time was the following exhibit: 
C-13 Letter written by Barbara O’Brien dated June 11, 2007 
 
Ms. O’Brien then read her letter dated June 11, 2007 into the record.  Her letter 
encouraged the Planning Board of Wyckoff to deny permits for any further development 
of the ravine. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked if Ms. O’Brien had seen the developer’s plans for the subdivision 
before this evening. 
Ms. O’ Brien said she had not seen the plans. 
 
Mr. Huntington said the subdivision plans have a conservation easement area in order 
to preserve the ravine. 
 
Ms. O’Brien said that was a great idea. 
 

*   *   * 
 

Mr. Lieberman said that at the next meeting Mr. Merl will return for cross examination 
by the applicant’s attorney Mr. Huntington. 
 
Chairman Stanley said that the Board has concluded with the testimony by Mr. 
Zimmerman.  Any additional information is required ten (10) business days before the 



07-11-07PM                 Planning Board 
 

17 

next Planning Board meeting which is scheduled for August 8, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Mr. Huntington requested a courtesy copy of any objector information be sent directly to 
him by Mr. Lieberman. 
 
There being no further business, a motion to adjourn the meeting was made and 
seconded and passed unanimously.  The meeting concluded at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
        Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 

Susan Schilstra, Planning Board 
Administrative Officer/Secretary 


